4. After Lh—

Fellowing the canclusiun_ Ms. Daniels and Mrs. Momell again discussed Ihe

— and the issue with respect 1o

|
ll

Again, Mrs. Mormetl questioned Ms. Daniels as

A

Ms. Daniels referred Mrs. Morrell to

|

Dr. Peoples and offered 10 contact Mrs. Barton to discuss the matter,

———

: Shortly thereafter, Mrs. Morrell left School #26 and returned to McKinley. She informed Mrs.

| Barton that

. NN - sdton, she informed Mrs. Barton that Ms Danicls
I
indicascd v (R

After Mrs. Morrell had left School #26, Mrs. Baron telephoned Ms. Daniels whiic she was still

at School #26, to discuss her concemns —
Ms. Daniels advised Mrs. Barton that the issue NN

| —should be reviewed with Dr. Peoples on the basis ﬂm—
— 1 the responsibility of Dr. Peoples,




Mrs. Barton questioned Ms. Daniels about why Mrs. Mormell was not allowm‘.—
Ms. Daniels informed Mys. Bartor || 2 of the contents of the school

e vrous SN Mo Mo SR

PR ————
Mrs. Barton _ and that she did not have anything to work with.

. Mrs. Barton responded tha: (N
Y <. E:2to0 confinmed that she would

send (NS !5 Dnicls. Lastly, Mrs. Barton informed Ms. Daniels that she

)

Ms. Daniels combined all of the documents brought (IS o one fil and retumed with

them to ber office in City Hall to await receipt of Mrs. Barton’s fax. Ms. Daniels contacted Mrs,

—

-

f—

-

Barton to advise her that the fax had not been received. At 2:07 p.m. on December 21, 2007, a
fax was received in the Office of Pupil Personnel Services from McKinley. The fax was

- - b<: corolmco in

McKinley. According to the document, the fax consisted of six pages, however, only four pages

of the document are contained in—:im'lwwnt file.

! Ms. Daniels reviewed the fax, thought about it and decided not to send it W0 -
—Ms. Daniels immediately affixed a bright blue “post-it” 10 the fax on which she

l. wrole Report was sent Iﬂ'tl-— Parent did mot receive a copy of the report. Ms



Danicls plwed the four page fax in— Ms. Danicls Jdid not adxis::-
— that she had received this information nor did she forward the

information to them. Ms. Daniels advised the Special Independent [nvestipator that she did not

substantively review the fax from Mrs. Banun—o:r did she

consider any part of it ptior 10 making her recommendation. Shontly thereafter, Dr. Peoples

instructed Ms. Daniels to leave for the day 1o and to review (| RGEGNGNGNE -x e

Christmas break.

On December 27, 2008, during the winter recess, Ms. Danizls went to ber office and while at her

office, she reviewed (N,

‘ Daniels did not consider the four page fax received from Mrs. Barton, as part of her evaluation.

Ms. Dasiels found o SR S -~ SN

The Memorandum also contains Ms. Danicls NN «hich: ~=ds: SRR




Peoples’

in reaching this decision. Dr. Peoples considered Ms. Daniels‘— and Ms.

panie! AR D Poorks also reviewed o (IITENG
U S : > b office on the afiemoon

i of the student YJlod that was not provided to Mrs. Jones and Jayvonna for their review.

I Dr Peopics atoo QN

udﬂchmc!ctfnrﬂﬂn_farmfudbyﬂwprimipﬂtu?upﬂ?mm[m

| December 13, 2007, but that were not inctded in{ NN T

information was considered by Dr. Pcoples to be a part.of the enecdotal record.

Initially, Dr. Peoples conchuded that (NN

In looking at the

—Dr, Peoples determined that

However, Dr. Peoples believed

! that

| Dr. Pecples ultimately determined that
—)r. Peoples reached this determination

4




U O Focrs 2o concluded tho (NI
A, ol
Dr. Peoples’ srmwn—

— In summm

Accordingly, the request by Mrs. Bamm Dr. Peoples viewed

her foa m—m—
W S <o o <

On January 4, 2008, clerical staff at Dr. Pcoples’ direction, prepared a letter addressed m-

SR . cver was fued to McKinley and received on a fax

machine focated in Mrs. Barton’s locked office. The lener indicated that the -

S .. i pasgrach of e

letter read:




17, _:m-.wal from MeKinley

On the moming of Monday, January 7, Zﬂﬂﬁ-“tm to the school office to again

R W - vin M. Morel vho

advised her that she had to discuss the matier with Mrs. Barton. Mrs. Barton infcmnec—

that she would consider her request after she completed the moming announcements. Thereafter,

-etumed to class.

Shortly thereafter, Mrx. Barton became aware of Dr. Peuples_ letter dated January 4,

2008 and Mrs. Barton requested school security 10 locaic (RS TN wes removed

&umh:rgymchﬂmduk:nwmcuﬂiuwhuemwuinfo_

Q= ot seen Dr. Peoples” e (g,

—Mmﬂminsummdlhemcuﬁt}'ﬂfﬁmmemthesmdem
tﬂthcﬁmcndmunfﬁccsnthﬂshcmuldmmac—madﬁsehn-

S 2 :o tha b could request a ride bome.

A short while later, Mrs. Barton saw lh-was still in the building and she instructed
Security Officer Palumbo thar she wanm-out of the building immediately. Mrs.
Barton directed Mr. Palumbo to give (= bvs pass and to remove her from the building.
Pror to lzaving the building, -ras given a copy of a letter, with the Superintendent’s
signature, dated Friday, January 4, 2008 and addressed oI ' Plumbo escorted

—m the outside of the building where she waited in the cold, frigid emperatures until her

-




The letter given 1o given tu- indicated that_

The face of this letter indicated that it was faxed from Pupil Personne] Services to McKinley on
: January 4, 2008, at 9:33 am. Until this time, neithe { N nor Y-« avare of the
T oucome of e (RO WM - i<

copy of the letter in the mai] until January 8, 2008.

! On or about January 7, 2008 or January 8, 2008 YR acmpeed, unsuccessfully on several
oceasions, to contact Mrs. Barton to discuss S 5b: cventually received a telephone
call from Mrs. Morrell. In addition{Jlleade several attempts to contact Dr. Peoples to

| obuain an explanasion (UIESVENRNG

1 During the second week of January 2008, SN comacied Dr. Peoples to determine why

| th:studmthadbetnallowndtnrm:mm:hmluﬂﬂ;mwuaskedmlmv:schml.

I advised Dr. Peopics that she had not received a letter indicating the disposition of the heanng.

Dr. Peoples advised— 1o wait antil she received the letter and then to consider an

appeal of the decision. She noled. however, that an appeal could lead 10 Mrs. Barton to request

—I. G - = ot satisficd with the explanation

\irs. Bantcn's right to seek avoluntan or

given  Dr Peoples also Jiscussed wath




imvoluntany wanster ut- Dr Peoples acknowiedges that the discussion she had with

—na}' have discouragcd—am procevding with an appeal.

18.  Januarv 9, 2008 Board of Education Meeting

The topic of the McKinley girls” basketbail team was again raised at the January 9, 2008 Board

mc:ting.— spoke to the Board on her am—behalf about the impact that
| Ms. Stiles” dismissal was having ou-and the team D < plained that she and

other parents had welcomed Ms. Stiles' relationship with the tearn and appreciated all of Ms.

|

Stiles’ efforts on behalf of the team and the girls. {E*2red with the Board that Ms.
! Stiles’ role was much more than as a coach, bt that she served as a mentor and helped to
1 motivate the girls and encouraged the girls to work hard in all aspects of their life.
! Following [l Micbelle Stiles spoke to the Board not about her dismissal, but about
l interference by Mrs. Barton in the girls® efforts 1o speak to the Board in December 2007 and

1 i call the

] abouri I 1¢sthy suspension for the use of & cell phone 10 Board office 10 place
l her name on the speaker's list. Ms. Stles expressed hex suprise at the severe penalry imposed
l t:m—and the much more lenient penalties assessed clsewhere in the district for much

more egregious violations.

j 15 Hume Instruction

As reflected 1 the January 4, 2008 letter a.dtising-of the decision to suspend

— untii February 13, :UUS.—B o receive home instruction. A student thar is

placed on home instruction is supposcd toyreceive the coursework provided by their teachers. A

home instractor b evpecied oo wolteat the wark et ta the marn aice by the leachers and then




—-]

-

ake the assignments to the student’s home for completion. In—l.s;:. many of her

teachers failed 1o leave her coursework for the home instnuetor, accordingly. the home nstructor
was only able to gix't- sampie Regents questions for work while she was out of schoo!

on suspension. Accordingly. bccausc_ttachcrs failed 1o supply the home instructor

with the appropriate cours:wurk.-ﬁ:ll extremely behind on all of her coursework for al|

of her classes.

20.  The District’s Intervention
On Sunday, January 27, 2008, The Buffalo News ran & story titled “Turmoi]l Under the Hoop;
Controversy Surrounds Dismissal of McKinley High Volunteer Coach.™ Subsequent articles
with respect to the dismissal of the coach and the suspension of the stadent were run om

January 30, January 31, February 1, February 2, Febmuary 3 and February 4, the day of the

student’s retumn to school. Daming the week of January 27, 2008, Associate Superintendent

K ermgrtes determined that,

“the public discourse on the dismissal of the volunteer coach af
McKinley and the suggested tie to the suspension cscalated. The
intended cfficacy of the penalty was being contravened by the
notoriety of the case — notoriety which the district believed was
causing the student more harm than good.™
Although we are unable to identify the day of the weck, with exact certainty, it appears that on

Wednesday, January 30, 2008 or Thursday, January 31, 2008, Mr. Kereszies, on his own

initiative, traveled to _ residence fo meet with—and hc— 1o

discuss aptions for her immediate retum 1o schoel.  According tc— Mr. Keresztes

assun:d- and her—'nat —u'uuld receive additional tutoring and

additional help with her college and scholarship applications upon her return to school.

++
e 1)



.'klorcm-.:r,—.md hcr--:rr: unequisocalls promised th.a—]cngth}

suspension would have no impact un— grades or her attendance record. During the
et Mo Kereszes s sugaesd o (AR

Following this discussion Il

T Atthe end of the proceedings in SN > NS

I

‘ 2. The Retum to School

On Monday, February 4, Eﬂﬂs,-mmncd to McKinley. She was accompanied by her

grandmother, her attorney, Loren Lobban, Esq. and M. Keresztes. A return 1o school

: conference was conducted by Mrs. Morrell. P T <o assurcd that

tumn to schoo! would be scamless and that she would not face any repercussions

Cromm the svodenis ot the adroinistmation. —

6
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22 Guidance to be Pronaded

As discussed abm':_ and-cn: assured that upon her retum to school she
would be provided assistance with her coursework, as well as her collcge and financial aid

applicatiens. At that time. it was agreed that the school would make the necessary arrangements

s0 that - would have access to school tutors during her study hall periods. It was

subsequently requested hy—wmr.y that [N <heduie be modified so that she

had a full day of classes and/or study halls and that she would no longer be eligible for early

release and could usc the study halls to secure tutoring.




B. The Dhsmissalof Michelle Sules

l. Background ~ Michelle Sules
\ichelle Stiles graduated from the State Lniversity of New York al Buffalo ("UB™) with a

Rachelor of Arts degree in Physical Therapy. \{s. Stiles also has a \Masters Degree in Exercise

Geience. After spending her freshman year at Niagara University, Ms. Stiles transferred to UB
where she played ficld hockey, basketball and sofiball, Following college, Ms. Stiles has worked
as a physical therapist and has coached basketbatl at Pennsylvania State University, UB and in
Virginia under Boo Williams in Williams' Amateur Athletic Union (“AAU™) league. In or about
5001 or 2002, Ms. Stiles returned to Westera New York and continued to work as a physical
therapist. In addition to her work as a physical therapist and after she returned 1o Western New
York, Ms. Stiles founded Queen City Classics, a not-for-profit AAU basketball program for
young girls'women and younger children in Western New York. Ms. Stiles served as the
Director and as a coach for Queen City Classics for several yoars.

2. McKinley High School Girls' Basketball Volunteer
In or about 2003-2004, Ms. Stiles met Michae! Sorrentino, the varsity coach for the McKinley
girls' basketball tearn, at 2 McKinley versus Traditional girls basketball game held st Traditional

High School. Ms. Stiles was antending the game recruiting players for her Queen City Classics

AALU team. At the game, Ms. Sules introduced herself 1o Mr. Somentine and asked him to

plzase inquire whether any of his plavers had ap interest in playing on her AAL team. Two

\Mekinley players were indeed tnterested in playing on the team, — and
— During the course of the year. \iIr. Sorrentine occasicnally spoke with




\fs. Stiles concuerning the times of the AAU practices and at Ms. Sules” request. Mr Surrenting

would share that information wil]—_

n December 2004, Ms. Stles was atending a McKinley versus Immaculala game at
Immaculata. In the middle of the game, Ms. Sules approached Mr. Sorrentino and offered to
share with him an offensive play for usc in the game, According to Mr. Somrentino, Ms. Stiles
diagrammed the offensive play and the McKinley team successfully put the play into use during
the game. Following the game, Mr. Sorrenting recalls that he invited Ms. Stiles to come o a
practice at McKinley and to provide some additional strategy to his team. Foliowing the
McKinley versus [mmaculsts game, Ms. Stiles’ relationship with M. Somrenting and the
McKinley girls' basketball program continued to blossom. In fact, beginning with the 2004-
2005 basketball scason and continuing through the beginning of the 2007-2008 basketball
season, Ms. Stiles assisted Mr. Sorrentino as a volunteer. At all times rclevant to this
investigation, Michael Sorrcutine was the head girls’ basketball coach at McKinley and Ms.
Stiles scrved in a voluntecr, assistant coach capacity. As such, Mr. Somrentino received 2 salary
from the Buffalo Public Schools associated with his duties as a head coach and Ms. Stiles, as 2

volunteer, was never compensated for her work with the McKinley girls® basketball Leam.

[mmediately following his invitation 1o Ms. Stiles to work with the McKinley girls® basketball
team. Mr. Somentino took Ms. Stiles to the McKinley main office and introduced Ms. Stiles to
\cKinlev principal, Crystal Barton. Mr. Sorrentino recalls that he explained ta Mrs. Barton thal
he wished to hate Ms. Stiles assist him with the team and Mrs. Barton did not object or express

any reluctance or hesitation n allowing Ms. Siiles 10 assist with the team. At this initial meeting.




Vs, Barton did not request that Ms. Stiles complete a soluntecr application nar did Mrs. Barion
explain to Ms. Stiles any rules governing volunteers. Similarly. at no hime duning s Stiles
nearly four year relationship with the McKinley girls® basketball team, did Mrs. Baron request
that Ms. Stiles complete a volunteer application. nor did Mrs. Barton explain to Ms. Stiles any
District or McKinley rules governing voiunteers. At no time did Mrs. Barton ever discuss M.

Stiles, her relationship with the McKinley girls’ basketball team or any concems she may have

had with Mr. Sorrentino.

Information supplied to the Special Independent Investigator has revealed that although Mr.
Sorrenting posscssed the title of head coach, Michelle Stiles actively taught the McKinley varsity
and juniov varsity girls’ basketball players the fundamentals of basketbull, offensive and
defensive plays to be used in games and séyved as the de facio head coach. Interviews with some
of the players on the team reveal that the students viewed Ms. Stiles as the coach of the team and
further that they had a high degree of respect for her and for her knowledge of the game. More
specifically, the Special Independent Investigator has learned (hat Mr. Sorrenitino was repeatedly
encouraged by his supervisors, including the Director of Athletics, David Thomas, to take a more
active role in discharging his coaching duties and responsibilitics. Notwithstanding repeated
encouragements, Mr. Sorrentino acquiesced in Ms. Stiles’ assumed leadership role with the
\icKinlev girls' basketball program and Mr. Sormentino, although be relained the title head
coach. served in a more passive capacity. [n one instance during the 2005-2006 basketball
season ol A pame against Burgard, Ms. Stles engaged i a verbal cxchange with a referee.
Shortly thereafter. Mr. Thomas spoke with Mr. Sorrentino and advised him that Ms. Sules was

rormain sested un the bench and that only Mr. Sorrentino should be standing and coaching dunng

b




games. Other than the aforemenuoned incident. and although Ms. Stiles had repeatedly
expressed her displeasure with the referves for the girls™ basketball games to David Thomas, Ms.

Stiles was never reprimanded by anyone at McKinley or the Buffalo Public Schools® staff for

any conduct during any games or otherwise.

Mr. Sorrentine indicated that throughout her nearly four year involvement with the McKinley
girls’ basketball team, Ms. Stiies never missed a practice and missed only cne game. Mr.
Sorrentino explained that Ms. Stiles was never permitted to have keys to the butlding and he
could recall only three possible instances where he may have given Ms. Stiles his keys and asked
her to retrieve something out of the boys' coaches’ office while he coached practice. At no time
was Ms. Stiles permitted to retain Mr. Sorrentine's keys for a period of time longer than it would

take to go to the boys’ coaches’ office and immediately return to practice.

3 Queen City Classics — 2005
As part of her Queen City Classics AAU program, Ma. Stiles frequently operated free clinics to
young boys and girls ages 8-11 to teach children the fundamentals of basketbail. Ms. Stiles
secured a number of facilities throughout the City of Buffalo to operate these clinics, including,
McKinley High School. On or about March 3, 2005, Mr. Sorrentino, on behalf of Queen City
Classics, completed an Instructional Application for Use of Schools for permission to use the
McKinley High Schoel gymnasium on March 3 and 4, 2005 from 3-30 pm. to 530 p.m, for
The Buffale Public Schools Director of Plant

basketball practice for Queen City Classics,




Services, Nusan Eager, approved the March 2003 request.  Although Mr. Somentino secured the
use of the McKinley gymnasium for Queen City Classics, Mr. Somrentino was not present at that

praclice. At no time was Mr. Somrentino advised that he must attend and supervise such an event.

On or about June 30, 2005, Ms. Stiles, as an Officer or Director of Queen Ciry Classies,
compicted an Application for Use of Facilities in Buffalo Public Schools Buildings requesting
permission to use the McKinley High School gymnasium on Monday through Friday momings
from 7:00 am. to 9:00 am. from July 5, 2005 through August 19, 2005 for basketball
instruction. Documents obtained by the Specal Independent Investigator reveal that Ms. Stiles
faxed this request to the Director of Plant Services on July 11, 2005. This request was approved
by Susan Eager the Director of Plant Services for the Buffalo Public Schools consistent with the
approval procedure she employed and as described above. Mr. Somrentino was not aware that
Ms. Stiles had made this request o use the McKinley High School gymnasium at this time. At
no time was Mr. Sorrentino or Ms. Stiles made aware that a representative of McKinley needed
to be present to supervise the use of the gymnasium. As Ms Eager explained to the Special
Independent Investigator, the Division of Plant Services has and continues to adhere to a strict
district policy concermning insurance coverage where, as here, a community group requests

permission to use 2 Buffalo Public Schools facility.

4. Queen City Classics — 2006
[n an undated letter to Michelle Stiles, Associatre Supenntendent of the Buffalo Public Schools

Mel L. Alston, A LA granted permission to Ms. Soles to use the McKinley High School

" Susan Eager explained to the Speciai Independent fnestigaror that the procedurs used 1o approve such a request
cand the subdeguent meguests Jescnbed belew | required the aathonizairon of the Mekiinley Princapal and the Chief

Enguieer Custodian




———

pymnastum on Monday nights from ~.0:3 pm. 10 8:30 p.m. beyinning October 30, 2006 and
continuing throughout the school year. The letter further states that there will be no charge for
the use of the factity while the program is piggybacked with Adult Education.' Mr. Somenting

recalled that Ms. Stiles did request and was given permission to use the McKinley Righ School

gymnasiun for Queen Ciry Classics in 2006,

5. Queen City Classics — 2007
On or about May 18, 2007, Ma. Stles, as an Officer or Director of Queen City Classics
completed an Application for Use of Facilities in Buffalo Poblic Schools Buildings requesting
permission 1o use the McKinley High School gymnasium on Monday nights from 6:00 p.m. o
8:00 p.m. beginning May 21, 2007 through August 20, 2007. Ms. Stiles fixed this form to Sue
Eager on May 21, 2007 from the McKinley High School Physical Education Department. On
that form, Ms. Stiles requested that the fee associated with using a Buffajo Public Schools’
facility be waived, As noted on the form by an empioyee in the Division of Plant Services, Ms.
Stiles was advised that because there was no program already in operation at McKinley High
School at that time, there would be a fee associated with any use of the gymnasium,

approximately, $150.74 per hour. Ms. Stiles never responded to the Buffalo Public Schools

Division of Plant Services with respect 1o this request.

On or about September [7, 2007, Ms. Stiles completed an Application for Use of Facilities in

Buffalo Public School Buildings requesting permission ta use the AMcKinley High School

* It 15 the undersianding of the Special Independent Investigazor that there are certain fees associated with
communiy requests 1o utilize Buffale Public Schools’ facilies Those fers can be waived where. as here. the
schoal was alveads 1 use and ne addinonai starf or expenses @ ould be incurred for the communit use of the
factity  Such awanerof the fees where the schoot was afreadh 1 se s commanly referred 1o inthe Jistrice as

“piggy Fackimg



gymnasium on Monday mghts from 7.00 p.m. w 8:00 pm. on cvery Mondas that Adult
Education is in session. Ms. Eager noted on the Application that, consistent with strict distnet
policy, she contacted the McKinley High Schoo! Chief Engineer. Custodian about this request on
Septernber 19, 2007 and September 29, 2007 and also contacted McKinley High School
Principal Crysial Baron on September 29, 2007 abour this request. By email and letter dated
October 1, 2007, Associate Superintendent Mel Alston advisad Ms. Stiles that beginning October
2, 2007, permission had been granted (o usc the McKinley High School gymnasium on Monday
nights from 7.00 p.m. 10 8:00 pm. The lerter from Associate Superintendent Alston further
states that there will be no charges formemufth:facilit}fanhistim:whﬂeth:pmgmnis
piggybacked with Adult Education. Associate Superintendent Alston further advised Ms. Stiles
that the permission was coatingent upon her supplying 10 the Division of Plant Services proof of
31,000,000 aggregate bodily injury and property damage insurance, Finally, the October 1, 2007
letter indicates that copics of the letter were provided to Noel Wilhelm, Chief
Engincer/Custodian at McKinley High School and Crystal Barton, Principal at McKinley High
School. By email dated October 2, 2007, 1o Susan Esger, McKinley High School Principal
Crystal Barton confirmed her consent for Queen City Classics to use the McKinley High School

gymnasium.

In fact, by email dated October {2, 2007, Barry Kirker Jr. advised Ms. Sules that be had received
her updated insurance certificate [insurance obtained through AAL and at Ms. Stiles’ expense]
and stated that “everything is in order™. Mr. Kirker's email confirmed ~This e-mail is to confirm

that vour basketball practice on Monday's during Adult Education sessions is allowed and

confirmed for the 2007-2008 BPS school vear. The previous approval letter is sull in effect.” A




copy of this email was provided 10 Noel Withelm, Swe Eager and Mel Alsion.  The insurance
documents supplied by Ms. Stiles provides that the insurance coverage was (o run from October
4, 2007 through August 30, 2008. Although the Special Independent Investigator has been
unable to precisely identify the Jate on which the Monday night Queen City Classies program
began in October 2007, based upon the correspondence reviewed and the Buffalo Public Schools

calendar, it is probable that the Monday night program began on or about October 15, 2007.

As reflected above, the McKinley gymnasium was not available free of charge during Summer
2007 because the Adult Education program was not in session, accordingly, Ms. Stiles made
alternative gymnasium arrangements during the summer and when the McKinley gymnasium
was not avaiiable. Severa] rturning members of the McKinley High School girls’ basketball
team volunteered 10 assist Ms. Siiles with the Monday night program both during the 2006-2007
and 2007-2008 school year and during the summer. Mr. Somenting advised the Special
Independent Investigator that he was not involved in the Queen City Classics Monday night
program. Mr. Somenting did, however, advise that bhe did permit Ms. Stiles to use the McKinley
High School basketballs during the Queen City Classics programs.

6. August/September 2007 Sighting of James Daye
Om or about August 18 or August 25, 2007, at approximately 1:15 p-m.. Ms. Stiles was driving a
young woman, a senior student at McKinley High School and a member of the girls® varsity

baskethall team, (who will hereinafier be referred 1o as-humc from a Queen City Classics

* The precise date of this mcident remams unknown  There i5 a fachudl discrepancy between seveval of the
winesses and information obtained by the Special Independen: Investigator  Facts relanng to this incident and

€% ents thereafter suggest that the incident could hase taken place in einhet August 2007 or September 2007, Based
on the preponderance of the nvidence accumulated bn the Special Independent Ins estigator the Specal Independerat
levestigatar has com luded for purpases of ths Report that the sighting ook place in late Augusl or very carly

September 2707




program held at the Wilham Fmslie yMC A ives m—ﬂuﬂhlo. New
York. While in the car, Ms. Stiles a.r"lad been dis:cussing-:mplﬂyment application at
the Burger King on Porter Avenue. Ms. Sules offered 1o dn'r.lc- the Burger King to check on

the status of her application. Ms. Stiles pulled up tolfii} home o—c and

realized that they had forgotten 1 go to Burger King to check on the application and they

proceeded to “double back™ o Porcer towards the Burger King,

While driving on Lakeview, Ms. Stiles andiff passed another home o ERRNRNINNEY +he e

a friend offff}and also a member of the McKinley girls’ basketbalt team (who will hereinafter be
referred to asJ occasionally stayed. It is the home of [Nsdul: (N WD
S - M. Stiles drove past the home, she andfffobserved James Daye, a McKinley
High School teacher, coach of the boys' basketball team and former girls’ track coach, leaving

QI <. ~s they drove past the home, Ms. Stiles wondered aloud why Coach

Daye would be leaving that home on & Saturday manum.suggsting that she knew why,
said “that she couldn't say™ or worda to that effect. Either that day or shortly thereafter, Ms.
Stiles l:allod-tﬂ ask why Coach Daye would be leaving the house wl'u:r-.h.nd occasionally
been staying. In response to her inquiry jjffstated that she couldn't say why Coach Daye was at
the home, Ms. Stiles explained to the Special independent Investigator thar based on concerns
regarding the student’s well being, she became concerned abcut. and in her words “said the

least offensive thing™ stating that it Jooks like somecone might be having an affair there. [n

r¢$pclnsc,. sad “yup, you got it




Mr Daye md—b.-i:am-.: acyuanted when -.as inyured during a track meer and

was taken 1o Wemen and Children’s Hospital of Buffale by Mr. Daye.

Immediately after making the observation of Coach Daye leaving a home wh:rc-xcasinnally
stayed and further learning information 1hat Coach Daye may be involved in an affair with an
adult in that home, Ms. Stiles shared that information with Mike Sorrentino. Mr. Sorrenting has
confirmed that Ms. Stiles notified him of her observation and of her concemns and that she had
made certain inquiries of the students. Once Ms. Stiles informed Mike Sorrentino about her
observations and the information that she obtained, she trusted that Mr. Sorrentino would take
the appropriate steps, if necessary in his judgment, to share the information with the appropriaic
persons at McKinley High Schoal or within the Buffalo Public School System, Specifically, Ms.
Stilcs recalls that she shared the information with Mr. Sorrentino over the telephone since neither
the Queen City Classics Mondsy night program or McKinley girls' basketbal] scason had started.
Notwithstanding the fact that Ms. Stiles had satisfiad herself that no child was in any imminent
danger, Ms. Stiles still Felt the necd to share the information with Mr. Sorrentino.

The Special Independent Investigator has learned that beginning in Spring 2007 and continuing

to the present, Mr. Daye and (IR b2+« developed a “friendship™. M. Daye and 0
W - spont time together on 2 number of occasions. Morcover, Mr. Daye was [

track coach and f§ regularly sees Mr. Daye at school. On the day that Ms. Stiles observed My.

Daye leaving a home an—and Mr. Daye explained 1o the

Special Independent Investigator that Mr. Daye had luaned_aughmr a softhall

bat over the summer and he was al—han:c on that Saturday moming o pick up




the bat  As wil be Jiscussed beiow, the explapaton Mro Dase offered w the Special
Independent invesugator is inconsistent with the explanation that AMr. Dave offered 1o Ms. Stiles.

- ]
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7. Monday Night Encounter with James Daye
As discussed above, information cbtained by the Special Independent Investigator sugpests that
the Queen City Classics Monday night program at McKinley High School began on or about
October 15, 2007, On that date (or a Monday night soon thereafier) at approximately 7:00 p.m.,
both Ms. Stiles and Jamea Daye recall an encounter in the boys' coaches’ office. [t is Ms. Stiles’
recollection that she had forgoiten a whistle for that evening’s program and was looking for a
whistle in the office when she overheard someone talking on a cell phone in the restroom located
just off the office. It is Mr. Daye’s recollection, however, that it appeared to him that Ms. Stiles
was waiting for him outside of the restroom. Both Ms. Stiles and Mr. Daye recali a verbal
exchange concerning Ms. Stles’ observation of Mr. Daye leaving a lmme—
The recoflections of Ms. Stiles and Mr. Daye as to the content and tone of the verhal exchange
Vary.
a Michetle Stiles’ Recollection
As a threshold mater, Ms. Stiles" recollection of the dates and times of her sighting of James
Daye and the Monday night encounter are inconsistent with the recollections of other witnessey.
For example, Ms. Stiles recalls thar the sightung of James Daye at what she later leamned was
S o took place in September 2007 and that her
encounter with James Dayve on a Monday night in the bovs' coaches’ office took place

approximately two wecks later. While Ms. Stiles™ recollection is certainly pussibie, informanion

obtained by the Special Independent Investigator suggests that the sighting of James Daye at




—c home took place in late August 2007, prior to the start

of the school year and that the Monday night encounter took place in mid-October 2007

Ms. Stiles has explained that on a Monday evening at approximately 7:00 p.m. she Jeft the
gymnasium to look for a whistle in the bovs® coaches’ office. Mr. Somentino apparently has a
desk in that office and Ms. Stiles had, on prior occasions, sat at that desk and ate dinner prior to
the Monday night program. Access to the boys' coaches' office can be gained one of two ways,
through the Jocked office door or through the boys’ locker room just off the boys’ coaches'
office. As will be discussed in greater detail below, Ms. Stiles did not have keys 10 the
McKinley building or o any other office within McKinley, so she recalls that she entered the
boys" coaches’ office through the boys® locker room which was unlocked. After she entered the
boys” coaches’ office and as she was looking for a whistle, she overheard a man talking oa a cell
phone in the bathroom located just off of the boys’ coaches' office. Immediately thereafter,
James Daye cxited the bathroom and asked Ms. Stiles “what were you doing asking questions
about me? [ heard you were asking questions™ or wonds to that effect. According to Ma. Stiles
she attempted to keep her bead down and continued 1o look for 2 whistle and was trying not to
make eye contact with Mr. Daye 50 a5 to avoid a confrontation. In response to Mr. Daye’'s
questions, Ms. Stles responded “I was just {poking out for the girls' safety.” In response, Mr.
Daye stated, “what are you trying to say ™ or words to that effect and Ms. Stiles responded, “["m

not really wying 1o say anything. I'm just concerned, these are my kids. and I'm gonna look out

for ‘em.”

nL




Ar. Daye then provided the following explanation. “for vour information | was playing cards
there. | have some friends that [ met at Chippewa or s0. And if vou have queshons, you need to
ask me” or words to that effect. Ms. Stiles recalis that she did not dispute what Mr. Daye was
saying, rather she simply said “okay, fine.” Ms. Stiles abserved that Mr. Daye seemed angry and
agitated and at the close of the conversation said “I've heard rumors about you™ or words fo that
effect.  Ms. Stiles recalled feeling threatened by Mr. Daye and she simply responded that
“you'rc not going 1o find anything”. Following this conversation with Mr. Daye, Ms. Stiles felt
wryuncumfumhlcparkinghﬂcuinthcmkjnglmbehindthcschmlandﬁ'nmthatpointon
she parked in a different lot. Shortly after the encounter, Ms. Stiles reported the incident 1o M.
Somentino.
b. James Daye’s Recollection

As discussed above, following Ms. Stiles’ sighting of James Daye leaving a home on [[JJ D
SR s Stiles inquired about Mr. Daye’s presence st the home toffiBandffK Tt should be
noted that neither{iinorJilB o their parent or guardian have agreed to meet with the Special
Independent Investigator. According to Mr, Daye, until &5 late as mid-October 2007, Ms. Stiles
was tepeatedly askin,g-qu:stinm about Mr. Daye. ‘ought advice from Mr. Daye as to
how o handle Ms. Stles’ inquiries and Mr. Daye advised Ler to speak with her mother or

Mr. Daye recalls that Ms. Stiles entered the boyvs® coaches™ office through a locked door accessed
through the boys’ locker room. Mr. Daye believed that it was a janitor entering the room

because he heard kevs.  Based wpon that event arnd informaton M, Dave oblained from

members of the custodial staff. Mr. Dasve concluded that Ms. Stiles had her own kev. Mr Daye




recalls that he told Ms. Stiles “if you have any questions about me, vou need to ask me  Stop
asking the kids questions about me, if you want to find out something about me, ask me, T will
tell you." Mr. Daye recalls that Ms. Stiles said “I saw you coming out of a house and you didn't
even wave at me” and that Ms. Stiles further said “[ didn’t know why you were there, ['m just
protecting the kids, I'm just protecting a kid™ or words to that effect. In responsc, Mr. Daye
recalls stating, “I know you are not trying to imply that something is going on with me and a
student” and according to Mr. Daye, Ms. Stiles threw up her hands and said “1 don't know, 1'm
just protecting a kid.” In response, Mr. Daye said “If you say that again, or imply that again, [
will have you down in front of the Superintendent I am a Board cmpleyee, you cannot go

around spreading rumors like that™

Immediately afier this conversation with Ms. Stiles, Mr. Daye recounted to the Special
Independent Investigator that he saw Noel Wilhelm, the McKinley Chicf Engincer/Custodian,
and that Mr. Daye and Mr. Wilhelm had 2 conversstion about Mr. Daye’s encounter with Ms.
Stites. Mr. Wilhelm does not have a recollection of this conversation with Mr. Daye. According
to Mr. Daye, Mr. Wilhelm asked Mr. Dayc what was wrong and Mr. Daye explainzd to Mr.
Wilhelm what happened with Ms. Stiles and that Mr. Withelm advised Mr. Daye to call someonc
on his behalf because the allcgations made by Ms. Stites were senous. Mr. Daye recalls that
Mrs. Barton was oul of town that evening and so Mr. Daye called David Thomas that same

evening on Mr. Thomas™ cell phone. Mr. Thomas has no recollection of this call.




B. Noveraber 13, 2007 Mecung with Crvsial Banon
Mr. Thomas advised the Special [ndependent Investigator that he had received a call from Mrs.
Barton on November 13. 2007 asking him to meet with her at her office about the basketball
program at McKinley. Dunng that meeting, Mrs. Barton advised Mr. Thomas that thers was 2
Monday night program being held at MeKiniey involving McKinley students and outside
students. Mrs. Barton indicated that if the program was only for McKinley High Schoo! students
that would be fine, but that she was not going to be responsible for outside students coming to
McKinley under the direction of & volunteer. Information provided to the Special Independent
[nvestigator reveals that certain other persons may have participated in a mecting on November
13, 2007 with Mrs. Barton and Mr. Thomas, including, Aubrey Lioyd, James Daye and Michacl
Sorrentino. Mr. Sorrentino recalls that he was called to Mrs. Barton’s office before noon on
November 13, 2007 and Mr. Thomas and Mr. Lloyd were also in Mrs. Barton's office. Mr.
Sorrentino recounted that the meeting was very brief and he was advised that Ms. Stiles was no
longer going to be assisting with the McKinley giris® basketball team and firther that Mrs.
Barton did not sec 2 need for her to speak with Ms. Stiles. Mr. Sorrentino neither questioned
Mrs, Barton's decision nor requested an cxplanation and Mr. Somrenting undersicod thet it was

his respoasibility 1o advise Ms. Stiles of Mrs. Barton's decision.

Shortly afler his brief meeting with Mrs. Barton, Mr. Sorrenting called Ms. Stiles on her cel)
phone and advised her of Mrs. Barton's decision. Mr. Sorrenting explained to Ms, Stiles that
Mrs. Barton Jdid not offer an explanation or a reason and further that he did not feel Mrs. Barton

was obligated o offer an explanation or a reason because Ms. Siiles was a volunteer. My,

Sorrentino stated that Ms. Stles was angry and disappointed.




9 Team Advised of Ms. Stiles’ Dismissal

One of Ms. Stiles’ physical therapy clients was— godmother. Immadiately

after learming that she would no longer be assisting the McKinley girls' basketball team. Ms.

Stles advised her client. (NG - R i = cald
R 1 <!l phone. N : < =i

| a similar call from (SNSRI »cvising her that Ms. Stiles had been dismissed as the
3 volunteer coach by Mrs. Barton. At the time of the cal{JJJJll=s in the girls’ locker room
with her teammates getting dressed for practice. Upon learning the news from NG
SR :-!!cd out to ber teammates and advised them that Ms. Stiles would no longer be their
j coach. Y then called Ms. Stiles from the locker with the rest of her teammates. During
the call Ms. Stiles told {JJillBand some of her teammates that she was not given an
explana:innnfwhysh:wuuldmlongnbcablemasﬁstﬂmtum.-ndsumgnfhcr
, teamunates expressed their anger st Mrs. Barton's decision and asked what they could do to try
and get Ms. Stiles back. Ms. Stiles stated that she intended to go down and talk to the Board of

I Education about the situatinn.-:lsu sought advice from her grandmother about what

] she and ber leammates could do to have Ms. Stiles reinstated. (IR
[ -:lﬁsad her Qo1 the team could writc a letter to the Board of Education or

speak at a Board of Education meeting.

B her teammates went to practice on the afternoon of November 13, 2007 and asked

to speak with Mr. Sorrentino about Ms. Stiles™ dismissal. Mr. Somentino advised his team about

Mrs. Barton’s Jecision and that Ms. Stiles would no longer be coaching the team. Shontly




thereafter, several members of the baskerball team decided that they would no Jonger participan
in practice in protest and did nor participate in practice for several days. In a handwritten note,
Mr. Sorrentino advised Mrs. Barton that several members of the team were refusing to
participate in practice.  Mrs. Barton advised Mr. Sorrentino to carry on with the team without

those members. Eventually, those members of the team returned to practice,

10.  Ms. Stiles Email to Dr. Williams
On Novemnber 13, 2007 at approximately 4:32 p.m., Ms. Stiles sent an email to Dr. Williams
concerning “Girls basketball in the city schools”. Prior 10 sending the email, Ms. Stles
contacted the Superintendent’s office and asked to speak to the Superintendent. Ose of Dr.
Williams secrctaries, Peggy Maiola, advised Ms. Stiles that she could not speak with Dr.
Williams but that she could send him an email. When Ma. Stiles explained that the matter was of
an urgent pnature, Ms. Maiola wold Ms. Stiles to send the email directly to her and she would
make sure that Dr. Williams received the email. In the emaif, Ma. Stiles explained to Dr.
Williams about ber cosching cxpericnce, the not-for-profit organization, Queen City Classics
which she founded, her volunteer work with the McKinley High School basketball teamn for the
previous three years and her dismissal from ber rele as a volunteer with the team. M. Stiles did
fniot receive a response 1o her email from Dr. Williams.  As will be discussed below, Ms. Stiles

did, however, receive a response to her email from Mrs. Barton on Nevember 15, 2007,

1. R s

On November 14. 2007. (I otc an email. in the form of a letter. on her home computer,

with the approsal off I :iiressed “To Whom it may concem™ on behalf of the




MeKinley girls” basketball team indicaling that on November 13, 2007 the giris learned that Ms,
Stiles had been dismissed. The letter discussed Ms. Stiles involvement with the team and
requested help in having Ms. Stiles reinstated. The letter indicated that it was from the
“McKinley's Girls Basketball Team”, the Special Independent [nvestigator has learned that

W <t lcast three other members of the team discussed the content of the ietter and that

W v 20d sent the cmail. It remains unclear who received a copy of this email fom

' W toxvor. 2t a minimum, Ms. Stles and Mr. Sorrentine received the email.  The

- 1

Special Independent Investigator has confinned that Mrs. Barton did receive a copy of
L It is believed that others in the adminigtration also received a copy of the
email. JJ} rocalls that she sent the email to Dr. Williams {or Dr. Williams' secrctary,
Peggy Maiola) and the members of the Board of Education.

whnk

' At the outset, the email/letter states that “we are McKinley’s Girls Basketball Team and we had
! an issue that was confirmed to us on 11/13/07. The issue that occurred has affected our whole

! basketball team and our principal Crystal Barton will not give us a reason why this was done to
us, she didn't even tell us we found out from one of our teammates mother.” The email/letter
J outlines specific instances where Ms. Stiles has had a positive impact on the tcam cotlectively

] and on the girls individually.

| In closing, the email Ietter asks “what we are trying io say if there is anything you can de about
this siuation please help us because we really need her the basketball league 15 going 10 stant on

December 4, 2007 and if theres anvthing vou can do before that to get her back we really




appreciate it Neither -'mr any other member of the girls” basketball team received an

acknowledgment ot a response to this email letter.

12, Response from Crystal Barton to Michelle Stiles” November 13, 2007 email to
Dr. Williams

On November 15, 2007, Ms. Stiles received a response to her email to Dr. Williams from Mrs.
Barton. Mrs. Barton forwarded her response to Mr. Williams, Mr. Thomas, Mr. Sorrentino, Mr.
Lloyd and Michael Lewis, a coach and the “Athletic Director”™ at McKinley. At the outset, Mrs.
Barton's response suggests that she had received Ms. Stiles” email not from Dr. Williams but
from a district employee. In her email, Mrs. Barton enumerated several concerns she had about

Ms, Stiles and her conduct at McKinley.

Surprisingly, Mrs. Barton stated that “all volunteers at McKinley must be authorized by the
building principal” However, as reported to the Special Independent Investigator, Mrs. Barton
way introduced 1o Ms. Stiles before she became involved with the team and at that time Mrs.
Barton did not express any concern or hesitation about Ms. Stiles working with the team. At no
time during Ms. Stiles nearly four year relationship with the team did Mrs. Barton ever complain
to Mr. Somentino or Mr. Thomas about Ms. Stiles. Mrs. Barton next stated that “volunteers are
not expected to engage in inharmonious relationships with faculty, staff or administrators, this

includes making false accusations™ and “no member of our faculty, staff or volunteers is allowed

10 engage our students in personnel. adult maners.”"*

7 45 noted above, because Mrs. Barton refused [0 PArDCIpals in an ISTENVIEW 1 CONNECTION wilh this Imyvestigalion,
the Special Independent Ins sstgator can only surmise thad these accusairons are Teferning o Ms. Stikes’ observarion
Af Mr Dane leaning the mare 4 here a player on the bashetbail team o<casionally stayed. Ms. Stiles’ inquiry vl wo
Plah ers Ul e atir 1nd furher, My Stues” confrontaion with Mr Dave

&6
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\irs. Banon further stated in her ematl that “no volunieer is allowed to be in the building withow
building supervision {teacher coach) and authorization of the building principal. However, Ms.
Stiles had obtained the permission of the Director of Plant Semaices to be in the McKinley
building for certain community events and further that the Director of Plant Services obtained the
consent of building personnel for Ms. Siles to use the gymnasium on specified occasions and
provided that Ms. Stiles supply proof of sufficient insurance coverage. Mrs. Barton's email adds
that “no volunieer is authorizad to engage our students in activities in our school during after
school hours- without the express permission of the building principal and supervision of a
teacher/coach. As discussed above, the Queoen City Classics events held at the McKinley
gymnasigm were community ¢véts that happened to be held at McKinley High School with the
permission of the School District. The McKinley students who participated in the events did so
with the knowledge of Mr. Sorrentino and with the express permission of their parent or
guardian.'! Finally, Mrs. Barton stated that “no volunteer is anthorized to be in possession of
building/district keys.” The Special Independent Investigator is pot in possession of any first-
hand information, othey than Mr. Daye's assumption, that Ms. Stiles was ever in possession of
building/district keys. The only information concerning the use of keys was from Mr. Sorrentino

as explained above.

13, Michelte Stiles’ Reply 10 Crystal Barton®s November 15, 2007 Email
On November 22, 2007. Ms. Sales replied to Mrs. Barton’s November 15, 2007 email. [n her
reply, Ms. Siles expressed her displeasure with Mrs. Barten's handling of the matter and

questioned the “reasons” Mrs. Barton otfered in her email for Ms. Stiles’ dismissal. Specifically,

*' Regrerabiy, the Specral Independent Im extigator » a< anabie 1o intens iew many of the students whe played on the
SeKinfes High School baskaball ieam and w®a alse v olunteered with Ms So'es. The parents or guardians of these
stLdents did ot —erum Jalls and letiers seqLesting an .nleniea
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M3, Stiles expressed concern about the impact that her dismissal was having on the team and on
the individual plasers and she attached (M «rer 1o the email. Ms. Stiles never received

a response from Mrs. Barton.

14, Canceliation of Queen City Classics' Use of McKinley Oyvmnasium
On November 30, 2007, Mrs. Barton contacted Susan Eager the Director of Plant Services and
inquired whether a request by McKinley to usc the gymnasium would displace a cOMMunIty
gmupwhuhadmadepmviousmmummﬂug}mmmn. Ms Eager advised Mrs.
Barton that consistent with district policy, a request 10 usc the school gymnasium for McKinley
students would indesd displace the community group. Accordingly, Mrs. Barton advised Ms.
Eager thallhcnisﬁnguishadGmﬂemmmdhdiaDmucmhwuuldmedmmﬂmMcKiMq
gymnasium on Monday evenings beginning immediately and continuing through June 2008 from
5.30 p.m. to 9:00 pm. to practice.'”’ Ms. Eager completed the required application for Mrs.
Barton umtheml:phon:mdimm@dhtclybeg,mﬂupmmufadﬁﬁng Ms. Stiles that her use

oftthcKinleygymmsimnwnﬂdbemﬂedbmrhlsh:muldm.ukearrmg:menumm

another Buffalo Public Schools gymnasium.

Also on November 30, 2007, Ms. Eager advised Ms. Stiles by phone message, email and letter
that Queen City Classics' usc of the McKinley gymnasium would be cancelled “effective
immediately” due te a conflict with a Buffalo Board of Education program. Ms. Eager further
sdvised Ms. Stiles that there may be another building available for use and that Ms. Stiles should

contact her to discuss the maner. On December 3. 2007, 10 further to her discussion with Ms.

D Becagse dry Baren refuscd to partopate i his Irsestigation. 1he Special Independeni Ins estigaior has been
arable 4 bt addnronal nfommator sbout the Domnguished Gentlemen and Ladies Dance Club

ok




Fager on November 30, 2007, Mrs. Barton senl Ms. Fager an email requesting the use of the
\cKinley gymnasium on Monday evenings stating “for the purpoese of having members of our
Distinguished Gentlemen and Ladies Clubs practice for a cotillion to be held in June 07 [sic].”

\fs. Eager responded to Mrs. Barton on December 3. 2007 indicating that the approval letter for

the use of the gy mnasium would be issued to Mrs. Barton.

15. December 11, 2007 Cell Phone Calls to the Board of Education

Please refer to Section VIAS beginning at page 16 for a complete discussion of the December 11,

2007 call to the Bosrd of Education.

16.  (iirls’ Basketball Tearn Meeting with Mrs. Barton
Please refer o Section VIA7 beginning at page 21 for a complete discussion of the school’s

response 1o the calls to the Board of Education, including the girls' basketball team meeting with

Mrs. Barton.

17 December 12, 2007 Mecting Between Dr. Williams and Ms. Stiles
On December 12, 2007, Dr. Williams met with Ms. Stiles in his office in City Hall. During this
mecting. Ms. Stiles reiterated much of what she had previously described to Dr. Williams in her
email to him. Dr. Williams does not recall ever seeing the email from Ms. Stiles. Ms. Stiles
explained to Dr. Williams that she had been a volunteer with the McKinley girls” basketball team
and that she had recently been dismissed without explanation. Dr. Williams explained w Ms.

Stiles that the district had ~no obligation™ to volunteers and that nothing could ur would be Jone
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(o rainstate ner. Moreaver, Dr. Williams advised Ms. Stiles that decisions relating 1o volunteers

were {eft to the discretion of the building pnncipals.

18.  December 12, 2007 Board of Education Meeting

It should be noted that the Special Independent Investigator has reviewed the video recording of
the December 12, 2007 Board of Education meeting. Ms. Stiles had requested to speak at the
December {2, 2007 Board meeting and was indeed given the opportunity to speak. During her
remarks Ms. Stiles explained the circumstances surrounding her involvement with the McKinley
girls” basketball team. [n fact Ms. Stiles explained that she had been assisting the team and Head
Coach Mike Somenting for three years and since her involvement, the team had improved
dramatically, losing only three games in the Canisius Cup conference. Moreover, Ms. Stiles
indicated that the girls have acquired thc fimdamental skills to play varsity basketball and
worked during the summer and on Monday nights to teach those fundamentals to 8-11 year olds.

Ms. Stiles also expressed that many on the team were upset that she had been dismissed and had
gone on strike for a week and that she did not view this action as a show of support of her, but
rather the girls' demonstration that they desire to play basketball at a really high fevel, that they
want people to have high expectations for them, that they want to be challenged and that they

want to be competitive at a regional level.

Lasi)y Ms. Stiles explained that many of the girls felt that their voices had been sufled and that

many had requested 1o speak at the December 12, 2007 mecung and upon their amival were 10ld

that their names had been removed. without their consent or their parents” consent, from the




speaker’s list.  Ms. Stiles further staled that five of the gitls who requesied 10 speak at the

December 12, 2007 meeting were given “suspensions pending” notification a.n-was

given a tive day suspension, suggesting inconsisient discipling being imposed at McKinley.

At the conclusion of the speakers poruen of the mesting. Supenntendent James A. Williams
spoke to the Board and to the audience and expressly thanked the swdents from McKinley High
Schoal for attending the meeting (notwithsianding the fact that their names had been removed
from the speaker’s list without their consent) and he further thanked “Coach Stiles™ for meeting
with him that afiemoon. Dr. Williams acknowledged that there were problems with the
basketball program and that there were issues that were not going to be discussed. Dr. Williams
further sxplained that volunteers were the responsibility of the principals and that by contract the
Board did not have any obligation to a volunteer. None of the stixlents who had placed their
names on the speakers list and who were ar the December 12, 2007 Board meeting were given

the opportunity to speak at the meeting.

19.  January 9, 2008 Board of Education Mecting
The topic of the McKinley girls’ basketball team was again raised at the January 9, 2008 Board
meeting. [fpoke first to the Board and explained the events that in her mind precipitated the
dismissal of Ms. Stiles. Speciﬁcall}"iscussed an inappropriate [extra-maritai] relationship
between an unnamed leacher and coach at McKinlev and the adult cousin of one of her friends
and tcammates. .xplaincd that she and others knew of the relationship and that she did not

believe that i1 was fair that Ms Stiles had been dismissed because of one individuals efforts to

hide his flagrant indiscretions.




. spoke aﬁﬂ‘ﬂd atternpted to read a statement that she had prepared. Not unlike -
rema:ks- explained that she and another wammate had shared the information conceming an

cxtra-martial relationship between a McKinley 1eacher and coach and their friend's cousin with

McKinley administraucn and nothing had been done abour it Moreover, the girls further

advised the McKinley administration that the teacher and coach continued to discuss this matter,
including the relationship itself, with the girls. A;-was reading her prepared remarks, several
Board members interrupted her and told her that there were certain matters that could not be
discussed in that forum and asked her to submit her prepared statement to the Board {JJJ§

complied.

SN 250 spoke to the Board on her andfif behalf about the impact that Ms.
Stiles” dismissal was having onfJlod the team. Mrs. Joncs explained that she and other
parcnts had welcorned Ms. Stiles™ relationship with the team and appreciated all of Ms. Stiles’
efforts on behalf of the team and the girls. Mry. Jones shared with the Board that Ms. Stiles® role

wis much more than as a coach. but that she served as a mentor and helped 1o motivate the girls

and encouraged the giris to work hard in all aspects of their life,

Fellowing -., Micheile Snles spoke passionately to the Board not about her dismissal,

but about the interference by Mrs. Barton 1n the girls™ efforts 1o speak to the Board in December

2007 and about _ngth}' suspension for the use of a cef] phone 1o call the Board office

to place her name on the speaker’s list. Ms. Stiles expressed her surprise at the severe penalty




imposed on _ld the much mote lenient penaltics assessed clsewhere in the district for

much more egregicus violauons.

0 January %, 2008 Conversation between Michelle Stiles and Catherine
Batiaglia
Immediately following the January 9, 2008 Board of Education meeting, Dr. Williams requested

that Commumity Superintendent Catherine Battaglia, Ph D. speak with Ms. Stiles and the
McKinley students and parent who spoke at the meeting. As a Community Superintendent, one
of the schools that Dr. Battaglia is responsible for is McKinley. Dr. Batiaglia had not besn
made aware of the dismissal of the volunteer assistant girls' basketball coach oot had she been
made aware nfthe—hmdedduwnm— At the January
9,29(]3Boudmecﬁng,DLBanlglilwulwningforthev:}rﬁrﬂﬁm:ufthcnimuat

McKinley.

Consistent with Dr, Williams® request, Dr. Battaglia met with Ms. Stiles outside of the Board
meeting room on January 9, 2008. Ma. Stilcs advised Dr. Battaglia thet she would forward to her
some documents that would update her as to the situation. As promised, Ms. Stiles supplied Dr.
Bartaglia with the emails described above [November 13, 2007 email from Ms. Siiles to Dr.

Witliams; November 14, 2007 email from [ O Williams and Board;

wovember 15, 2007 email from Mrs. Barton to Ms. Stiles: November 22, 2007 email from Ms.

Stiles 1o Mrs. Barton].




21, Japuary 10, 2008 McKinfey v. Burgard at Burgard High Schual
On January 10, 2008, the McKinley girls™ basketball team was playing Burgard a1 Burgard. Ms.
Stiles atiended the game to videotape the game. The previous season. A5, Stiles had made a
video compilation of the season for the girls and she wanited to do the same this year. Ms. Stiles
recalled that she was seated next 1o the mother of one of the players videotaping the game and
along with the parents, cheering-on the team. During halftime, Ms. Stles observed a man
speaking to Mr. Sorrentino and shortly thereafter, Mr. Somrentino advised Ms. Stiles that they
were going o ask her w0 leave the game. As expected, one of the security officers approached
Ms. Stiles and asked her 1o leave the game. The security officer would not give Ms. Stiles an
exp[anatiauutﬂwhysh:wubcinglskadmIuvcﬂmglmeandwhensltaskedforan

explanation, the security officer told her to ask Dave Thomas.

27.  Information Shared with David Thomas and James Williams Concerning
Michelle Stiles

The 2007-2008 girls basketball season marked the first scason where there were organized, inter-
scholastic junior varsity games. All of the games were held at Waterfront School on Saturday
momingsafternoon and each of the six schools who had a junior varsity team played a game,;
there were a total of three games on each Saturday moming/aftenoon. During January 2008,
games werc held on January 5, 2008, January 12, 2008, January 19, 2008 and January 26, 2008.
According to several people interviewed by the Special [ndependent Investigator, Dr. Williams

and Mr. Thomas attended the Sanurday moming afternoon jurior varsity games on either January

12th or January 19th.




The Bennett High School girls” basketball coach. Deb Stanczyk. advised the Special Independent
Investigator that on either January 12th or January [9th she recalls entering the gymnasium and
making a remark in passing to Dave Thomas concerning Ms. Stles presence in the gymnasium.
Ms. Stanczyk recalls expressing to Mr. Thomas her surprise that Ms. Stiles would “show her
face” at the game after the incident at Burgard earlicr in the month. Ms. Stanczyk was refemring
10 the incident where Ms. Stilas was removed from a McKinley versus Burgard game at Burgard.
In response, Mr. Themas recailed to Ms. Stanczyk that Ms. Stancryk had notfied Mr. Thomas

several years prior about an incident involving Ms. Stiles.

Ms. Stanczyk advised the Special Independent Investigator that in or about the 2005-2004 school
year, she leamed from one of her high school players who played AAU basketball with Ms.
Stiles, that that player had received a phone call from Ms. Stiles at approximately 2 am. Ms.
Stanczyk thought that it was unusual for a high school student 10 receive a phone call from an
adult at 2 am. Ms. Suanczyk felt it was necessary to immedintcly sdvise Mr. Thomas of the
information she leamed. Ms. Stanczyk notified Mr. Thomas of the information she learned from
one of her players by telephone. According to Ms. Stanczyk, Mr. Thomas thanked her for the
information and said something to Ms. Stanczyk that led her to conclude that he would look into

it. Ms. Stanczyk is unaware of what actions, if any, Mr. Thomas took with respect ta the

informatian.

Following Ms. Stanczyk's brief exchange with Mr. Thomas on either January {2th or January

19th, 2008, M. Thomas, who was seated next w De. Williams while watching the games, shared




with Dr. Williams the substance of the information Ms. Stanczyk had shared wuh him several

years ago.

23, January 29. 2008 Board of Education Executive Session
As it has been reported in the Buffalo News, the Board of Education met in what has been
described as “Executive Session” on January 29, 2008."* During our interview of Dr. Williams,
: he stated that he told the Board during Exccutive Session that (NS
T R . : .t | ssid. 1 soic
d U, R o ords to that cffect. Following the Executive Session, the

information Dr. Williams shared with the Board was leaked to the Buffalo News. The source of

l t]:u:l:a_khubunﬂlembjwtufascpmmimuﬁgaﬁmmuducmdbythtﬂuardufﬂucaﬁon

Ethics Committee.

During the course of this investigation, Dr. Williams was questioned about the source of the

information he shared with the Board during the January 29, 2008 Executive Session. Initially, 1-

il Dr. Williams considered that Ms. Stiles herseif was the source of that information and then Dr. ‘1
l‘1

| Williams alternatively thought that perhaps the source of the information could have been the 1;
] ECC Head Women's Basketball Coach, Natosha Cummings-Price. On February 1, 2008, Ms.

Cummings-Price had sent an email to the ECC Athletic Director requesting that Ms. Stiles not be
o
! perminted to enter the ECC Athletic Center. The ECC Athletic Director in turn forwarded that c-

mail to David Thomas and others. Mrs. Cummings-Price’s email was then circulated to several

' There has been public debate about whether what has been called “Executive Session” was indeed a properly
convened Executive Session. The Special Independent Investigaior has nor been sked 10 opine as to the legality of
that session and for purposes of s report anly will refer to the session a3 an Executive Session Sach reference,
howewer, should not ot amy way be interpresed (o sugZest that the Special Independent iny estrgator has considered or
concluded whetber that the se43100 w44 3 properh consened Executve Sessian
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others. Howeser, this -mail was ruled ou: as a possible source of this informatien. After funher

discussion, Dr. Williams concluded that he was unable to recall the source of the information.

24 Removal from Section VI Game at McKinley
On February 21, 2008, the McKinley girls” basketball team was plaving against Williamsville
South High School in a Section VI playoff game being held at MeKinley, Ms. Stiles was invited
to attend the game by a friend Jeffrey Marcus, the parent of a player on the Williamsville South
teamn. With some trepidation, Ms. Stiles accepted Marcus® invitstion and agreed to attend the
game. Upon amriving at McKinley and discovering that Marcus was already in the gym, Ms.
Stiles contacted her attomey, Richard T. Sullivan, from the parking lot and asked him to
accompany her into the building. A fan of basketball and not one to turs down an opportunity 1o

scc a game, Mr. Sullivan agreed and met Stiles in the parking lot at McKinley.

Upon erftering the building, Mr. Sullivan and Ms. Stiles signed their names on the sign-in sheet
and paid the entrance fce. Ms. Sullivan and Ms. Stiles proceed 1o walk through McKinley
towards the gymnasium and are confronted by McKinley Security Officers McBride and
Palumbo. At that time, Mr. Sullivan and Ms. Stiles was advised that Ms. Sules was not
permitted to enter the gymnasium at the direction of the Athletic Director David Thomas. At Mr.
Sullivan's request, Security Officer McBride attempted to contact Mr. Thomas. Apparently,
Security Officer McBride spoke with Mr. Thomas® assistant [Aubrey Lloyd] and reiterated to
“ir. Sullivan and MMs. Stiles that Ms. Stiles was not permitted into the gymnasium. Just as Mr.

Sullivan and Ms. Stiles were about to Jeave McKinley, one of the Security Officer’s cell phones

rang and he advised Mr. Sublivan and Ms. Sules that Ms. Stiles may cnter the gymnasivm but




that she cannet coach from the stands or speak 10 any of the McKinley players. Mr. Sullivan and

Mg Stiles sat with the Marcus™ with the fans for Willlamssille South.

At halftime, Mr. Sullivan decided to leave the game and left Ms. Stiles with her friends the
Marcus®™. Mr. Sullivan had just arrived ar his car in the McKinley parking lot and he received a
call on his cell phone from Ms. Stiles stating that she was being removed from the game by two
uniformed Buffalo Police Officers. Mr. Sullivan immediately pulled his car around to the
gymnasium entrance 10 McKinley and spoke with the officers who very politely and
apologetically stated that Mrs. Barton had called and advised that Ms. Stiles was not permitted in
the building. The officers advised Mr. Sullivan and Ms. Stilcs that Ms. Stiles had done nothing

to warrant her removal from the game, rather, they were simply following Mrs. Barton's request.

25.  Meeting Between Catherine Bartaglia, David Thomas and Crystal Barton
After February 21, 2008, at the request of Dr. Williams, Dr. Battaglia and David Thomas had a
meeting with Mrs. Barton concerning the incident where Mrs. Barton had Ms. Stiles removed
from the McKinley gymnasium during a Section VI playoff game. Duning this meeting, Dr.
Battaglia and Mr. Thomas advised Mrs. Barton that the Superintendent was not in favor of such
conduct (having semeone removed from a school building during an event that was open to the
public}. [n response, Mrs. Barton advised Dr. Banaglia and Mr. Thomas that it was the right of

the principal to determine who would be permirted to aflend events at the scheol.
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CONCLLSION
It is undisputed that McKinley Principal Crystal Barton had every right to dismiss Michelle
Stiles as a volunteer a! the school. The question presected is to what extent, If any, others
precipitated or influenced her decision to dismiss Ms. Sules. The facis of this investigation
indicate that Ms. Stiles had a visible presence in the MceKinley building since as early as 2004
without incident. It was not until the events of August or Seplember 2007 involving James Daye
that her involvement at the school became a subject of concern.  This concern was discussed at
the November 13, 2007 meeting between Mrs. Barton and David Thomas, where James Daye
was also in aitendance. While we cannot conclude that Ms. Stiles was dismissed by Mrs. Barton
in response o a direct request by Mr. Daye, it appears that as a result of his participation in this
meeting, Mr. Daye's concerns were a contributing factor in Mrs. Barton’s decision. Our analysis
of the facts and circumstances set forth above with respect to the relationship of Michelle Stiles
with McKinley and her dismissal as a volunteer by Principal Crystal Barton are reviewed in the

Recommendations document submitied herewith.
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